NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd. Office: B-14, A-Block, 37 Floor, Local Shopping Complex, Ring Road, Naraina Vihar, New Delhi- 110028
Phone No.: 011 25771170, 001-25770108 | Email: contactus@nucfdc.in | Website; www.nucfdein
Corporate Ofice: 04, Ground Floor, Windfall, Sahar Plaza, | B Nagar, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai- 400 059 | Phone: <91 Ba357 21727

CIN: U65990DL2020PLC363322

ST ANNUAL REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

L. Mr. Jyotindra Mansukhlal Mehta [(DIN: D0387212) : Chairman

2. Mr. Hanumantgouda Krishnagouda Patil (DIN: 02323401): Director

3. Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh (DIN: 100633493) : (Additional) Independent Director

4. Mr. Seshabhadrasrinivasa Mallikarjunarao i (Additional) Independent Director
Chamarty (DIN: 0766764 1) (w.ef. 18% March, 2025)

5. Mr. Pankaj Kumar Bansal, 1AS (DIN: 05197128) : (Additional) Director
(weel. 219 April, 2025)

6. Mr. Sunil Vitthal Saudagar (DIN: 10799955) s (Additional) Director
(w.e.f. 21% April, 2025)

7. Dr. Rajeev Uberoi (DIN:01731829) : [Additional) Independent Director
(weef 4" August, 2025)

8. Col. Vinod Shah (DIN: 11210055) : (Additional) Independent Director

[w.ef. 200 August, 2025)

WHOLE-TIME KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

1. Mr. Prabhat Kumar Chaturvedi ¢ Chiel Executive Officer
[weel. 14t September, 2024)

2. Ms. Hetal Tejas Faldu : Chief Financial Officer
(weef. 8% August, 2024 till 30 June, 2025)

3. Mrs. Nyra Hardik Hinduja [(ACS: 62852) : Company Secretary
(w.e.f. 23 March, 2024 till 30" June, 2025)

4. Mr. Pranay Desai : Chiel Financial Oflicer
(w.el. 1=t July, 2025)

5. Mr. Vikas Tarekar (ACS: 31670) : Company Secretary

(w.e.l. 15 July, 2025)

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Name of Director Directorship Role in Committee
Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh Independent Director Chairperson
Mr. CH 5. 5 Mallikarjunarao Independent Director Member
Mr. Sunil V. Saudagar Director Member
Mr. Krishnakumar Subramanyam Independent Director Member
(upto 29t January 2025)
Mr. Ajai Kumar Independent Director Member
[upta 17t March, 2025)




Name of Director

Directorship

Role in Committee

Mr. Radha Binod Barman

Mr. Jyotindra Mansulkhlal Mehta

Independent Director

Director

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Member

(upto 17 March, 2025]
Member

(upto 237 May, 2025)

Name of Director Directorship Role in Committee
Mr. CH 5. 5 Mallikarjunaraao Independent Director Chairman
Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh Independent Director Member
Mr. Jvotindra Mansukhlal Mehta Director Member
Mr. H. K. Patil [irector Member
Mr. Krishnakumar Subramanyam Independent Director Member

(upto 29" January, 2025)

Mr. Ajai Kumar

Independent Director

Member
(upta 17t March, 2025)

Dr. Radha Binod Barman

Independent Director

Member
[upta 17 March, 2025)

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE:

Name of Director Directorship Role in Committee
Mr. Jyotindra Mansukhlal Mehta Director Member
Mr. Hanumantgouda Krishnagouda Director Member
Patil
Mr, Krishnakumar Subramanyam Independent Director Member

(upto 29 January, 2025)

Mr. Ajai Kumar

Independent Director

Member
[upto 17" March, 2025)

Dr. Radha Binod Barman

Independent Director

Member
[upto 17 March, 2025)

STATUTORY AUDITORS:
M/s P. K. Modi & Co,
Chartered Accountants,
Ahmedabad

BANKERS:
ICICI Bank Limited
New Delhi

REGISTERED OFFICE:

B-14, A-Block, 3rd Floor, Local Shopping
Complex, Ring Road, Naraina Vihar,
South West Delhi, New Delhi-110028

Phone: 011-25771170, 25770108
Email ID: compliance@nucfdein
Website: www.nunfdc.in

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:
SPAN] & ASSOCIATES,
Company Secretaries,
Ahmedabad

CORPORATE OFFICE:
04, Ground Floor, Windfall,

Sahar Plaza, | B Nagar, Andheri

Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400059
Phone: +91 B6557 21727




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd. Office: B-14, A-Block, 37 Floor, Local Shopping Complex, Ring Road, Naraina Vihar, New Delhi- 110028
Phone No.: 011 -25771170, 011-25770108 | Email: contactus@nucfde.in | Website: www.nucfdein
Corporate (ffice: 04, Ground Floor, Windfall, Sahar Plaza, | B Nagar, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumhai- 400 059 | Phone: 491 86557 21727
CIN: U65990DL2Z020PLC363322

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that 5% (Fifth] Annual General Meeting of the Members of NATIONAL
URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED having its
registered office at B-14, A - Block, 3 Floor, Local Shopping Complex, Ring Road, Naraina Vihar,
Mew Delhi = 110 028 will be held on Monday, 29t September, 2025 at 11.00-a.m. through Video
Conferencing /Other Audio Visual Means (0OAVC) to transact the [ollowing business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements for the period from 1% April,
2024 to 319 March, 2025 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place ol Mr. Hanumantgouda Krishnagouda Patil [DIN: 02323401),
who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appaint Statutory Auditors and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the
fallowing resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time ("the
Act’), read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules,
if any, under the Act, (including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to Circular no. REI/2021-
22/25 Ref. No. DoS. CDLARG/SEC.01,/08.91.001,/2021-22 dated 27th April 2021 issued by
the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") on Guidelines for appointment of Statutory Auditors (RE]
Circular / Guidelines) and the rules, regulations, circulars, directions and other
guidelines/clarifications if any issued by the REL from time to time for the appointment of
Statutory Auditors, M/s Mukund M Chitale & Co,, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
Mo. 106655W), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company fora
term of 3 [Three] consecutive years from the conclusion of this 5th (Fifth) Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the 8th (Eighth) Annual General Meeting at such remuneration
as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company in the place of M/s. PP K Modi & Co,
Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad, who has ceased to be auditors due to resignation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
autherized to do all acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all decisions as it may deem
fit in its absolute discretion to give effect to the above resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

narao  Chamarty  [DIN:

To consider and if thought [it to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:




"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Seshabhadrasrinivasa
Mallikarjunarao Chamarty (DIN: 07667641), who was appointed as an Additional Director
of the Company effective from 18 March, 2025 at the meeting of Board of Directors held on
4t March, 2025 to hold office upto ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, be and
is hereby appointed as Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation,”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule IV of the Act and Companies (Appointment and
(Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) on the recommendation of the Momination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company having appointed  Mr.
Seshabhadrasrinivasa Mallikarjunarae Chamarty (DIN: 07667641), as Additional (Non-
Executive Independent) Director of the Company with effect from 18™ March, 2025 in terms
of provisions of Section 161 of the Act and Articles of Association of the Company for a
period of 2 (bwo) vears [rom the date of his appointment and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Non- Executive
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a
period of 2 [two) yeari.e, from 18" March, 2025 tll 17t March, 2027."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient, and
desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and matters incidental thereto,”

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under and the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Rachana Rahul Parilch (DIN:
10063393), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company effective from
27" March, 2025 at the meeting of Board of Directors held an 4% March, 2025 to hold office
upto ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as
Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation.”

of the company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule IV of the Act and Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutary modifications or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company having appointed Ms. Rachana Rahul




10.

Parilkh [DIN: 10063393}, as Additional (Non-Executive Independent] Director of the
Company with effect from 27 March, 2025 in terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Act
and Articles of Association of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years from the date of
her re-appointment for the second and final term and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing her candidature
for the office of the Director, be and Is hereby appointed as an Non- Executive Independent
Directar of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a period of 3
(three) year i.e, from 27" March, 2025 till 26™ March, 2028."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient, and
desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and matters incidental thereto.”

company:

To consider and, il thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Pankaj Kumar Bansal [DIN:
05197128), representing National Cooperative Development Corporation (NCDC) and who
was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company eflective from 21+ April, 2025,
being the effective date of approval of Reserve Bank of India and appointed at the meeling of
Board of Directors held on 27% September, 2024 to hold office upto ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation.”

A int t of Mr. Sunil Vitthal Saud (DIN: 10799955) Di f il
company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sunil Vitthal Saudagar (DIN:
10799955), representing Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited and who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company effective from 2 1% April, 2025, being the effective date
of approval of Reserve Bank of India and appointed at the meeting of Board of Directors
held on 270 September, 2024 1o hold office uplo ensuing Annual General Meeting ol the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation.”

i ‘ 3 beroi (DIN; 01731829) : il .

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under and the Articles ol Association of the Company, Dr. Rajeev Uberoi [DIN:
01731829), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company elfective [rom 4t
August, 2025 to hold office upto ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, be and is
hereby appointed as Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation.”




To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant ta the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule IV of the Act and Companies [Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force] on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company having appointed Dr. Rajeev Oberoi
(DIN: 01731829), as Additional {(Non-Executive Independent) Director of the Company with
effect from 4" August, 2025 in terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Act and Articles of
Association of the Company for a period of 2 (two) vears from the date of his appointment
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice under Section 160 of the Act
from a member proposing his candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby
appointed as Non- Execulive Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, to hold office for a period of 2 year L.e, from 4% August, 2025 till 3~ Aupust, 2027.°

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient, and
desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and matters incidental thereto.”

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 160 ol the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under and the Articles of Association of the Company, Col Vinod Shah [DIN:
11210055), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company effective from
20" Aygust, 2025 to hold office upto ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, be
and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule IV of the Act and Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force] on the recommendation of the MNomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Direclors of the Company having appointed Col. Vinod Shah (DIN:
11210055), as Additional (Non-Executive Independent) Director of the Company with eflect
from 20™ August, 2025 in terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Act and Articles of
Association of the Company for a period of 2 (two) years from the date of his appointment
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice under Section 160 of the Act
from a member proposing his candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby
appointed as Non- Execulive Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retive by
rotation, to hold office for a period of 2 year ie., from 20" August, 2025 till 19 August,
2027,




"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient, and
desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and matters incidental thereto.”

Date: 4™ September, 2025 By order of the Board
Place: Mumbai For National Urban Co-operative Finance
and Development Corporation Limited
Registered Office: P
B-14, & - Block, 3rd Floor, VIKAS $|El-.t;|||r~¥un?.lsuf:ﬁfrm
2 PURUSHOTT 1aesan
Local Shopping Complex, g 0w 2025 09 04
Ring Road, Naraina Vihar, AM TAREKAR 121800 10530
MNew Delhi= 110 028 Vikas Tarekar

Company Secretary & Compliance officer

NOTES:

o 1

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020,
Circular Mo, 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, General Circular No. 10/ 2021 dated June 23, 2021, General
Circular No. 20/2021 dated December 8, 2021, General Ciecular No. 11/2022 dated December 28, 2022,
General Circular No. 09/2022 dated September 25, 2023 and 09/2024 dated 19" September, 2024
{collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars"] issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") and in
compliance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has decided to hald its 5% [Fifth)
Annual General Meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (DAVM],
without physical presence of the Members at a common venue.

Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be 2 member of the Company. Since this AGM is
being held through VC / OAVM, pursuant ta the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto,

Notice of the AGM and the annual report for the FY. 202425 are being sent electronically to the Members
whose email Id's are registerad with the Company unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of
the same,

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the ronte map of the venue of the Meeting 15 not annexed
heretao.

Corporate Shareholders [Le. other than individuals f HUF, NRT, ete) are required to send a scanned copy
(POEAPG Format] of its Hoard or geverping body Resoluton/Authorization etc, awthorizing igs
representitive to attend the AGM through VC / QAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-yoting,

The Company will provide separately the link of VO / OAVM facility to its members for participating at the
AGM. Members attending the AGM through VC/0AVM shall be reckoned tor the purpose of quorum under
Section 103 of the Act

As the Company is not a listed company nor have more than ane thousand shareholders, the provisions of
section 108 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 relating to providing
facility to the members to exercise their right to vote through electronic means, are not applicable.

Since the Company has mare than 50 members and in accordance with the aforesaid circulars, the voting
on the resolution may bBe conducted by show of hand only when not more than 50 members attend the
meeting. If the need arises to conduct the voting through poll or the pall is ordersd or demanded, it shall
only be conducted through the designated email 1D of the Company i.e, compliance@nucfdoin

During the meeting held through VC or OAVM facility, where a poll on any item is reqguired, the members
shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending emails through thelr email addresses which are




registered with the company. The said emails shall only be sent to the designated email address of the
COmpany.

10, shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must reglster thelr request with the company at
least 7 davs before the date of the Meeting. Depending upon the time availability, the management may
decide the number of speakers and also the time allotted to each speaker.

11, The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sectlon 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2003 with respect (o the
special business set outat item Nos. 3 o 10 in the Notloe iz annexed.
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PLANATO TATEMENT

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND OTHER
APPLICAELE PROVISIONS

ITEM NO. 3:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, M/s P. K. Modi & Co. Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (FEN: 106484W), were
appointed as Stamtory Auditors of the Company at the 17 Annual General Meeting, to hold office
till the conclusion of the 6™ Annual General Meeting of the Company..

The Reserve Banlk of India ("RBI") issued a Circular RBI/2021- 22/25 Ref. No. DoS.
CD.ARG/SEC.01/0891.001/2021-22 dated 27th April 2021 ('Circular’/*Guidelines’) for
appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors ("Statutory Auditors™) of
Commercial Banlks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) ("REI Guidelines™).

The RBI Guidelines, inter-alia. have stipulated that NBFCs will have to appoint statutory auditor
for a continuous period of 3 (three) vears only. Also, an audit firm that has completed full or
part of one term of the audit tenure shall not be eligible for re-appointment in the same entity
for a period of 6 [six) years thereafter.

REl subsequently also issued a clarification/FAQ on 11th June 2021. Based on the said
clarification/FAQs issued by RBI, the existing Statutory Auditors can continue only if they fulfil
the eligibility criteria and have not completed the stipulated tenure of three years. M/s P. K.
Maodi & Co., the existing Statutory Auditors of the Company already completed continuous audit
of three years (four years of continuous audit) and has vide letter dated September 2, 2025
resigned and step down as Statutory Auditors of the Company effective from the conclusion of
the ensuing 5% (Fifth) Annual General Meeting of the Company.

To comply with the aforesaid RBI Guidelines and the provisions of Act, the Board of Directors of
the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee [the "Committee"), has
recommended for the approval of the Members, the appointment of M/s. Mukund M Chitale &
Co,, Chartered Accountants [Firm Registration Mo. 106655W), as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, for a term of 3 (three) consecutive years from the conclusion of 5th [Fifth) Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of the Bth {Eighth) Annual General Meeting.

M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, have consented to the said appointment
and confirmed that their appointment, if made at the 5th (Fifth} Annual General Meeting will be
within the limits specified under section 141{3){g) of the Act and will be in compliance with the
eligibility criteria / requirements specified under the Companies Act, 2013 and the REI
Guidelines.

The propased fees to be paid to M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, for
statutory audit is ¥4 Lakhs p.a, for 2025-26 and the Board will decide the audit fee for the next
VEears,




Brief profile and credentials of M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co,, Chartered Accountants, are as
under:

M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, have the 51 years legacy. An audit driven
Firm - 7 out of 11 partners focus exclusively on audits, All the partners are the fellow members
of the ICAL 9 out of 11 partners have been with the Firm for minimum 15 years. Staff of around
200 people,

ITEMNO. 4 & 5:

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 4% March, 2025, on the
recommendation of the Momination and Remuneration Committee, has appointed Mr,
Seshabhadrasrinivasa Mallikarjunarao Chamarty [DIN: 07667641]) as an Additional Director
(Mon-Executive, Independent) with effect from 18" March, 2025 pursuant to the provisions of
Section 149, 161(1) and the Articles of Association of the Company. In terms of Section 161 of
the Companies Act, 2013, he holds office as an Additional Director up to the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeling.

The Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
from a member proposing his candidature for appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company.

Mr. Chamarty has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria ol independence as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, he
fulfils the conditions for appointment as an Independent Director and is independent of the
management and be paid such remuneration by way of sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses for attending the meetings of the Board and Committees thereof, as may be approved
by the Board within the limits prescribed under the Act and directions issued by the REL in this
regard, from time to time,

Mr. CH 5. 5. Mallikarjunarao, age 61 years, is a professional banker with more than 37 years of
experience. He retired as Managing Director & CEO (MD & CEQ) of Punjab Mational Bank (PNB)
in January 2022, During his tenure at PNB, he successfully completed the amalgamation of
Oriental Bank of Commerce and United Bank of India into PNB in terms of the notification
issued by the Government of India, Prior 1o assuming the position of MD & CEOQ of PNB, he was
MD & CEO of Allahabad Bank from September 2018 to September 2019, Before this, he served
as Executive Director of Syndicate Bank since 2016. Mr. Mallikarjunarao has held various
positions in Oriental Bank of Commerce including as General Manager, Chief Financial Officer,
Head of Information Technology, Digital Banking and Risk Department, etc. He has reguisite
qualification, skills, experience and expertise in specific functional areas viz. Accountancy,
Agriculture & Rural Economy, Banking, Finance, Small-5cale Industry, Information Technaology,
Human Resource, Risk Management, Business Management and Insurance. He holds a Bachelor
degree in science and general laws and is a Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers.

The Board considers that the association of Mr. Mallikarjunarao as Independent Director would
be beneficial and in the best interest of the Company, considering his experience and expertise.

Pursuant to Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director can be
appointed for a term of up to five consecutive years and shall not be liable to retire by rotation,

10




Accordingly, the Board recommends the appointment of Mr. CH 5. 5. Mallikarjunarao as a
director in terms of item No. 4 of the Notice and as an Independent Director of the Company for
a term of two years, in terms of item no. 5 of the Notice,

MNone of the Directors and/or Key Managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives,
except Mr, CH S. 5, Mallikarjunarao, heing appointee is concerned or interested, financially, or
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No, £ and 5 of the accompanying the Notice seeking
approval of the members by way of Ordinary Resolutions,

The Board recommends the resolutions set out at Item No. 4 and 5 of the accompanying Notice
for your approval as Ordinary Resolution.

ITEMNO.6 & 7;

To re- int Ms, Rachana Rahul Parilsh (DIN: 10063393) as Ind lent Di i

[l i

Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh (DIN: 10063393) was appointed as an Additional Independent
Woman Director on the Board of the Company by the Board of Directors of the company at its
meeting held on 21# March, 2024 for a period of 1 year from 27" March, 2024 and held office
upto 26t March, 2025.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 4% March, 2025 considered her
appointment as an Independent Director for the second and final term for a period of 3 years
effective from Z7% March, 2025 tll 26 March, 2028, subject to requisite approval of the
members at a general meeting,

Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh, is a gualified CA with more than 2 decades experience. She satisfies
the [it and proper criteria as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India for assuming the role of
Director applicable to Non-Banking Financlal Company (NBFC) sector. Moreover, she has also
furnished the requisite declaration and undertaking, as mandated for individuals aspiring to
serve as directors in an NEFC and is registered with [ICA as Independent Director,

In accordance with Section 149(10) read with Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, re-
appointment of an Independent Director for a second term requires approval of members by
way of a Special Resolution.

MNone of the Directors and/or Key Managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives
except Ms. Rachna Rahul Parikh, being appointee, are concerned or interested, financially, or
otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 6 and 7 of the accompanying the Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice as an
Ordinary Resolution and Item No. 7 as Special Resolution for approval by the members of the
Company.

ITEM NO. 8

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 271 September, 2024, based upon
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and on seeking approval
of Reserve Bank of India, appointed Mr. Pankaj Kumar Bansal (DIN: 05197128) as an Additional
Director of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161[1] of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company and his appointment as additional director
hecame effective from 21 April, 2025,
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Pankaj Kumar Bansal is a 1997 batch IAS Officer of Tamil Nadu Cadre, who has held many key
positions in various departments in the Government of Tamil Nadu. He has worked as a
Collector of Thiruvallur, Dharmapuri and Sivagangai districts. He has also worked as Project
Director in implementation of various projects funded by the World Bank, Japan International
Cooperation Agency, Asian Development Bank and DANIDA in the fields of Metrorail, power,
health, drinking water and sanitation. His expertise lies in monitoring and implementation of
large Infrastructure Projects,

His previous posts include Director of Town and Country Planning, Mission Director of National
Rural Health Mission, Managing Director of Chennai Metro Rail Limited, Principal
Secretary/Commissioner of Land Administration, Chairman and Managing Director of TNEB
LTD./TANGEDCO and Chairman and Managing Director, Tamilnadu Industrial Development
Corporation Limited (TIDCO).

He was also a director in the Tamilnadu Power Finance and Infrastructure Development
Corporation during period 2020-21, a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with Reserve
Bank of India [RBI) and classified as a Public Financial Institution by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India,

Presently, Pankaj Kumar Bansal is the Additional Secretary at Ministrv of Cooperation,
Government of India and Managing Director of National Cooperative Development Corporation
(NCDC) since June, 2022, NCDC is a statutory organisation set up under an Act of Parliament for
financing and developing Cooperatives in the country, National Co-operative Development
Corporation (NCDC) is the largest shareholder of the company holding approx. 20% of the Paid-
up share capital of the company. He represents NCDC on the Board of the Company.

Mr. Panlkaj Kumar Bansal holds office as an Additional Director up to the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160[1]) of
the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing his candidature for appointment as Director
of Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at items no. 8 of the accompanying Notice for
appointment of Mr. Pankaj Kumar Bansal as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation, for the approval of the members by way of an Ordinary Resolution,

MNone of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except Mr.
Pankaj Kumar Bansal, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set
out at item Mo, 8,

ITEM NO. 9:

gtk F Mr, Sunil Vitthal Saud (DIN: 10799955) a5 Di il )

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 27 September, 2024, based upon
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and on seeking approval
of Reserve Bank of India, appointed Mr. Sunil Vitthal Saudagar (DIN: 10799955) as an
Additional Director of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company and his appointment as
additional director became effective from 2 1= April, 2025,

Shri Sunil Vithal Saudagar is a practicing CA for the past 44 years and has extensive experience

and is Consultant in the fields of Audit, Taxation and Project Finance, He is a Director on the
Board ol Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd since 2008, He is presently Chairman of Risk
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Management Committee and member of the Audit Accounts and NPA management committee of
the Board of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited, Saraswat Co-operative bank Limited is one of
the large shareholders of the company and he represents Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited
on the Board of the Company.

Shri Sunil Vithal Saudagar holds office as an Additional Director up to the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing his candidature for appointment as Director
of Company,

The Board recommends the resolution sel oul at items no. 9 of the accompanying Motice for
appointment of Shri Sunil Vithal Saudagar as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation, for the approval of the members by way of an Ordinary Resolution,

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except
Shri Sunil Vithal Saudagar, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution
setoutat item No. 9.

ITEMNO. 10 & 11:

: { Dr. Raj ut i (DIN: 01731829) as Independent Direct f the
Lompany:;

The Board of Directors of the Company vide its circular resolution 2025-26/4 approved by
majority of Directors on 4% August 2025, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, has appointed Dr. Rajeev Oberoi (DIN: 01731829) as an Additional
Director (Non-Executive, Independent] with effect from 4% Avpust, 2025 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 149, 161(1) and the Articles ol Association of the Company. In terms of
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, he holds office as an Additional Director up to the date
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

The Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
from a member proposing his candidature for appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company.

Dr. Uberoi has submitted a declaration that hie meets the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfils the
conditions for appointment as an Independent Director and Is independent of the management
and be paid such remuneration by way of sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses for
attending the meetings of the Board and Committees thereof, as may be approved by the Board
within the limits prescribed under the Act and directions issued by the RBI, in this regard, from
time to time,

Dr. Rajeey Uberoi is a career Banker with more than lour decades of experience with Reserve
Bank of India, Foreign Banks and establishing of a private sector Bank and NBFC's. He has heen
waorking as Senior Group President - Governance and Controls of Yes Bank Limited since July,
2019, Prior to joining Yes Bank Limited, he has worked with IDFC Bank Limited as General
Counsel and Group Head-Legal and Compliance since 2009, In his previous experiences, he has
worked with several domestic and multinational banks such as Standard Chartered Bank, Union
Bank of India, State Bank of India, Reserve Bank ol India as Asst General Manager, Dept. ol
Banking Supervision, Citibank as Vice President & Regulatory Head; ANZ Grindlays Bank as
Head-Risk Management & Compliance - India. Dr, Uberoi is a lawyer and a Canadian
Commonwealth Scholar with a Masters from McMaster University and a Ph.D. in Economics, He
also possesses a Post Graduate Diploma in Business Administration from the Management
Development [nstitute (MDI].
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The Board considers that considering the experience and expertise, the association of Dr. Rajeey
Uberoi as Independent Director would be beneficial and in the best interest of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 14910} of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director can be
appointed for a term of up to five consecutive years and shall not be liable to reftire by rotation.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the appointment of Dr. Rajeev Uberoi as Directors and as
an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 2 years, in terms of item no. 10 & 11 of
the Notice,

MNone of the Directors and/or Key Managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives,
except Dr. Rajeev Uberoi, being appointee is concerned or interested, financially, or otherwise,
in the resolutions set out at Item Mo, 10 & 11 of the accompanying the Notice seeking approval
of the members by way of Ordinary Resolution.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out at ltem No, 10 & 11 of the accompanying Notice
for your approval as Ordinary Resolution.

ITEMND. 12 & 13:

A int t of Col. Vinod Shah (DIN: 11210055) Ind lent Direct £t
Lompany;

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Momination and
Remuneration Commiltee, vide its clreular resolution 2025-26/5 approved by majority of
Directors on 20 August 2025, has appointed Col, Vinod Shah (DIN: 11210055] as an Additional
Director [Non-Executive, Independent) with effect from 20% August, 2025 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 149, 161(1] and the Articles of Association of the Company. In terms of
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, he holds office as an Additional Director up to the date
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

The Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
from a member proposing his candidature for appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company.

Col. Shah has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, he [ulfils the
conditions for appointment as an Independent Director and Is independent of the management
and bhe paid such remuneration by way of sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses for
attending the meetings of the Board and Committees thereof, as may be approved by the Board
within the limits prescribed under the Act and directions issued by the RBI, in this regard, from
time to time,

Col. Shah a seasoned IT & Telecom professional with long experience in setting up IT
&Telecomm networks and managed services operations of IT & telecommunications projects.
Have managed large teams of more than 1200 people at different levels. A Certified Quality
management expert with experience in manufacturing, training & implementation of 150 9000
systems in manufacturing and & [50 27001 in IT/Software companies. Cyber security expert
with good experience of setting up of 1T networks for Banks and also implementing defense in
depth architecture for 1T networks. Experience of Formulating of various Cyber security policies
for banks in India. Col. Shah is an excellent collaborator across multiple disciplines including:
business stakeholders, executive level technology risk areas, regulatory agencies, compliance
pariners & the Board of Directors.
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The Board considers that considering his experience and expertise, the association of Col. Vinod
Shah as Independent Director would be beneficial and in the best interest of the Company which
being a Fintech company,

Pursuant to Section 14910} of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director can be
appointed for a term of up to five consecutive years and shall not be liable to retire by rotation,

Accordingly, the Board recommends the appointment of Col. Vinod Shah as Directors and as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of 2 years, in terms of item no. 12 & 13 of the
Notice.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives,
except Col, Vinod Shah, being appointee is concerned or interested, financially, or otherwise, in
the resclutions set out at ltem No. 12 & 13 of the accompanying the Notice seeking approval of
the members by way of Ordinary Eesolution.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out at Item No. 12 & 13 of the accompanying Notice
for your approval as Ordinary Resolution.

Date: 4th September, 2025 By order of the Board

Place: Mumbai For National Urban Co-operative Finance
and Development Corporation Limited
Wik e R A

Registered Office: PURUSHOTT mept

B-14, A - Block, 3rd Floor, AM TAREKAR 13270 50

Local Shopping Complex, Vikas Tarekar

Ring Road, Naraina Vihar, Company Secretary & Compliance officer

New Delhi - 110 028
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NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd. Office: B-14, A-Block, 3 Floor, Local Shopping Complex, Ring Read, Naraina Vihar, New Delhi - 110028
Phone No.: 011 -25771170, 011-25770108 | Email: contactus@nucfdc.in | Website: www.nucfdein
Corporate Office: 04, Ground Floor, Windfall, Sahar Plaza, ] B Nagar, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri {East], Mumbai-
400 059 | Phone: +91 86557 21727

CIN: U65990DL2020PLC363322

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To

The Members,

NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE
AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

Your directors are pleased to present their 5% (Fifth] Annual Report together with audited Balance
sheet and statement of Profit & Loss for the year commencing on 1= April, 2024 and ended on 31=

March, 2025 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
(X in Lakh)
Current Year Previous Year
2024-2025 2023-2024

Revenue from operations 423.92 -
Other Income 31454 183.57
Less; Expenditure 878.21 161.07
Profit/{loss) before Interest, Depreciation & Taxation (131.14] 23.28
Less: Interest - -
Depreciation 8.62 0.80
Taxation [incl: Deferred Tax) 345 {5.15)
Extraordinary [tems - -
Net Profit/(Loss] [143.20) 27.64
Proposed Dividend - -
Transfer to General Reserve - -

During the year under report. your Company has reported the total revenue of ¥ 738.46 Lakh
(Previous year T 183.57 Lakh). The expenses incurred by the Company amounts to ¥ 878.21 Lakh
[Previous year % 161.07 Lakh). The Company has incurred a Net loss of ¥ 143.20 Lakh (Previous
year's Net profit ¥ 27.64 Lakh).




UMBRELLA ORGANISATION FOR URBAN CO-OPERATIVE BANKS (UCBS):

The Reserve Bank of India vide its Letter dated August 11, 2023 has granted its approval to the
Company for issuance of CoR. as a Type 11 Non-Deposit taking NEFC, subject to raising the paid-up
share capital of the company to minimum Rs. 100 Crores within a period of & months from the date
of approval. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 10% January, 2023 had
approved the allotment of 10,45,99,9936 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at par, under private
placement and the paid - up share capital of the Company stood at Rs. 117,95.05,960/-. The Reserve
Bank of India on an application made by the Company had granted its permissicn vide No. N-14
03609 dated 8% February, 2024 permitting the company to commence and carry on the business of
Type 11 Non-Deposit Taking NBFC on terms and conditions forming part of the registration. As the
Company is mandated to act as Umbrella Organisation for UCBs, the Paid-up share capital of the
Company is required to be not less than Rs. 300 crores within one year from the date of registration
of the company as NBEC.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 23™ May, 2025 has made allotment of
11,77.63,272 equity share of Rs. 10/- each to 97 UCEs on private placement basis and as on the said
date, the paid-up share capital stood at Rs. 235,71,38,680/-. The Company has made an application to
Reserve Bank of India seeking an extension of time to reach a capital target of Rs. 300 crores for
recognition of the company as Umbrella Organisation of Urban Co-operative Banks.

As you are aware, NUCFDC as Umbrella organization (UO) for the nation's UCE sector was
inaugurated by Hon'ble Union Minister for Home & Cooperation at a function held in Vigyan Bhawan,
Mew Delhi on March 02, 2024 which was attended by dignitaries from Government, REl and top
management of many UCBs and state federations spread across the country. Hon'ble Minister lauded
the launch of NUCFDC and hoped that it would be catalytic, game changer and play an important role
in enhancing the sector's operational efficiency through professionalism and innovative technology,
thereby facilitating its healthy pgrowth while meeting the challenges of competition from
differentiated players in the market.

We are pleased to inform that yvour company is actively engaged in the important task of organization
building to undertake the various functions and provide various fund-based and non-fund-based
services. The company is setting up its Corporate Office at Mumbai and has undertaken the
important task of hiring experienced professionals and Key Managerial Persons for managing the
operations of the company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

Mo material change affecting the financial position of the Company has occurred between the end of
financial year to which the statement relates and the date of this Directors’ Report.

DIVIDEND:

The Company being in nascent stage as NBFC and vet to generate revenue from Technology segment,

your directors do not recommend dividend on the equity shares of the Company for the vear ended
March, 2025.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Since the Company does not have any Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate Company as such the
provisions of Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 relating to providing details, performance &




financial position of the subsidiaries, joint venture and Associate Companies are not applicable to the
Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

During the year under review, neither any amount was transferred to any Reserve, nor did the Board
propose the transfer of any amount to the General Reserve or any other Reserves of the Company.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL:

With the approval of the members at the 4% Annual General Meeting held on 24% September, 2024,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 200 crores to Rs. 1,000 crores.

The Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the Company as at 31% March, 2025 stood at Rs. 117,95,05,960/-.
With the allotment of equity shares under private placement on 23 May, 2025, the Paid-up share
capital of the Company stood at Rs. 235.71,38.680/-.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Sections 92 and 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of the Annual Return is available on the
Company’s website hitps: www.nucfdcin.

DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits to which provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 or the rules made thereunder are applicable.

During the year, under report the Company has not granted any Loans or provided Guarantees.
Additionally. there are no Investments made by the Company during the year under review.

As per the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had not entered into
any transaction with the related parties during the year.

There were no material related party transactions entered by the Company during the financial year.

Hence, Form AQC-2 as per the provisions of section 134(3){(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
provided.

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors;

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s P. K. Modi & Co. Chartered Accountants,
Ahmedabad (FRN: 106434W), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 1=




Annual General Meeting, to hold office till the conclusion of the 6% Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

The Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks and hence no
comments or explanations are required to be made. The Statutory Auditors have not reported any
incident of fraud to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors under Section 143{12) of the Act
during the financial year under review.

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India vide its Circular dated 27th April. 2021 issued guidelines for
appointment of statutory auditors of NBFC ["EBI Circular”™) and mandated the appointment of
statutory auditors of NBFCs for a continuous tenure of 3 years subject to firms satisfying eligibility
norms each year.

Accordingly, since M/s P. K. Modi & Co. Chartered Accountants, had completed more than 3 years as
Statutory Auditors of the Company. and in view of the RBI mandate, M/s P. K. Modi & Co. Chartered
Accountants tendered their resignation at the conclusion of the Fifth AGM.

In view of the same, the Company has proposed to appoint M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 106655W) as statutory auditor of the Company for a period of 3
[three] vears commencing from conclusion of Fifth AGM till the conclusion of Eighth AGM in terms of
RBI Circular and the Act subject to ratification by shareholders. M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co.,
Chartered Accountants have consented to the said appointment and confirmed that their
appointment, if made would be within the limits as specified under Section 141(3){g) of the Act. They
have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as statutory auditor in terms of
the provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1), Section 141 (2] and Section 141(3) of the Act and the
provisions of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Bules, 2014 and the RBl Circular. The Audit
Committee and Board of Directors recommend the appointment of M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of Fifth AGM tll
the conclusion of Eighth AGM, subject to ratification of approval of appointment and fixing of
remuneration by sharcholders of the Company. Shareholders are requested to approve appointment
and fix their remuneration,

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. 5SPAN] & Associates, Company Secretaries,
Ahmedabad were appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for
the year 2024-25 and the Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks
and hence no comments or explanations are required to be made.

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 138 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with
Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {incuding any modification or re-enactment
thereof], the Company has appointed M/s Bhatia & Bhatia, Chartered Accountants as an Internal
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25.

Maintenance of Cost Records

The Maintenance of Cost Records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act 2013 iz not
required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records are not made and maintained
by the Company.




DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that:

i.  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 2025 the
applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material deparfures;

ii.  the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates in that regard, that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;

iii.  the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for detecting and preventing fraud and other
irregularities:

iv.  the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis:

v.  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

All the appointments of the Directors of the Company are in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thersunder.

Director retiring by rotation

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Act read with the Articles of Association of the Company. Mr.
Hanumantgouda Krishnagouda Patil (DIN: 02323401), retires by rotation at the fifthAnnual General
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and the Board of Directors have
recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Hanumantgouda Krishnagouda Patil.

Appointment & Re-appointment of Independent Directors and Directors

= Mr. Seshabhadrasrinivasa Mallikarjunarac Chamarty (DIN: 07667641) was appointed as
Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company with effect from
15% March, 2025 for a period of 2 years.

= Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh [DIN: 10063393, a Chartered Accountant in practice was re-appointed
as Independent Woman director on the Board of the Company with effect from 272 March, 2025
for a period of 3 years.

= Dr. Rajeev Uberoi (DIN: 01731829) was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent
Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 4% August, 2025 for a period of 2 years and

= Col. Vinod Shah [DIN: 11210055) was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent
Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 20% August, 2025 for a period of 2 years.

The Board recommends their appointment and re-appointment as independent Directors of the
Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,




= Mr. Pankaj Kumar Bansal, IAS (DIN: 05797775) and Mr. Sunil Vitthal Saudagar (DIN: 10799955)
were appointed as Additional Non-Executive Non-Independent Director on the Board of the
Company with effect from 21 April, 2025.

The Board recommends their appointment as directors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

During the year under report. Mr. § Krishnakumar had ceased to be a director due to hiz demise on
29% [anuary, 2025 and Mr. Ajal Kumar and Dr. R. B. Barman had ceased to be directors on the Board
of the Company effective from 172 March. 2025 due to completion of their second term as
Independent Directors. The Board places its deep appreciation for the immense contribution made
by the outgoing directors in shaping the growth of the Company.

Fit and Proper Criteria

All the Directors meet the fit and proper criteria stipulated under the REI Master Directions. as
amended.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Board has received declarations from the Independent Director as per the requirement of
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Board is satisfied that the Independent Directors
meet the criteria of independence as mentioned in Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the
opinion of the Board, the Independent Director possess the requisite integrity, experience, expertise
and proficiency required under all applicable laws.

Key Managerial Personnel

With a view to strengthen the management by adopting restructuring at the top level. Mr. Atul
Khirwadkar, Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Franky Arora and Ms. Hetal Faldu Chief Financial Officers of
the Company had submitted their resignation with effect from 13t September, 2024,7® August. 2024
and 30% June, 2025 respectively. Mr. Prabhat Kumar Chaturvedi, Mr. Pranav Desai and Mr. Vikas
Tarekar were appointed as Chief Executive Officer [CEQ), Chief Financial Officer [CFO) and Company
Secretary respectively of the Company, with effect from 14t September, 2024 and 1= July, 2025
respectively.

NUMBEER OF BOARD MEETINGS:
As per the provisions of section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company is required to hold a
minimum number of four meetings of its Board of Directors every year in such manner that not more

than 120 days shall intervene between two consecufive meetings of the Board.

During the year under review, the Company had & (5ix]) Board Meetings and the interval between
none of the meetings of the Board exceeded the prescribed time limit of 120 days.

NUCFDC - BOARD MEETING - 2024-25

Meeting Board Mr. Mr. Mr. S Dr. Radha | Mr. Ajai M=, Mr.CHS.
No. Meeting - Ivotindra Hanumant- Krishna B. Kumar® | Rachana S. Malli-
Date & Time Mehta gouda K. Patil | -kemar* | Barman® R.Parikh | karjuna
Rao#
17/07,/2024
MO
A & 06:30 PM o v v v v v NA.




NUCFDC - BOARD MEETING - 2024-25

Meeting Board Mr. Mr. Mr. 5 Dr. Radha | Mr. Ajai Ms. Mr.CHS.
No. Meeting - Ivotindra Hanumant- Krishna B. Kumar® | Rachana 5. Malli-
Date & Time Mehta gouda K Patil | -kumar® | Barman® R.Parikh | karjuna
Rao®
27/09/2024
- ks
33 % 03:15 PM v L v v v v N.A.
~ 08/01/2025
TH
G & 03:00 PM v L L s v 73 NA.
24/02/2025
TH
35 & 02:30 PM o L N.A. L o < N.A.
04/03/2025
TH
ok & 05:30 PM ud L NA. L ¥ v NA.
24/03/2025
TH
37 % 07:00 BM v o N.A. N.A. MN.A. o W

L: Leave of absence
*: Ceased to be Independent Director effective from 29% fanuary, 2025
*: Retired as Independent Directors effective from 17% March, 2025

#: Appointed as Independent Director effective from 13% March, 2025

There being no qualifications raised by the Statutory Auditors, no clarifications/explanations/
comments are needed to be given.

C EES OF BEOARD:

1. Audit Committee:

The Board of Directors of the Company has re-constituted the Audit Committee on 23 May, 2025
and the Audit Committee consisted the following members during the year:

Name of Director Directorship Role in Committee
Mz, Rachana Rahul Parikh Independent Director Chairperson
Mr. CH 5. 5. Mallikarjunarao Independent Director Member
Mr. Sunil V. Saudagar Director Member
Mr. Krishnakumar Subramanyam Independent Director Member

{upto 29 [anuary 2025)
Mr. Ajai Kumar Independent Director Member

(upto 17® March, 2025)
Mr. Radha Binod Barman Independent Director Member

[upto 17%® March, 2025]
Mr. Jvotindra Mansukhlal Mehta Director Member

[upto 23 May. 2025)

During the year under review, 2 [Two) Audit Committee Meetings were held.

NUCFDC - AUDIT COMMITTEE [AC) MEETING - 2024-25

Meeting
No.

Meeting

Date & Time

Mr. Jyotindra
Mehta

Mr. 5
Krishnakumar

Dr. Radha B.
Barman

Mr. Ajai
Kumar

Ms. Rachana R.
Parikh*




NUCFDC - AUDIT COMMITTEE (aC) MEETING - 2024-25

Meeting Meeting Mr. Jyotindra Mr. 5 Dr. Radha B. Mr. Ajai | Ms.RachanaR.
Nao. Date & Time Mehta Krishnakumar Barman Kumar Parikh*
17/07/2024
xo
= & 05:30 PM v v v v N.A.
27/09/2024
RD
4 & 10:00 AM ¢ v v v | v

*: Appointed as the Chairperzon of the committee effective from 17 July, 2024,

Terms of Reference of the Andit Committee:

(i)
(i)

(i)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

the recommendation for appointment. remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the company;

review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process:

examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties:

Provided that the Audit Committee may make omnibus approval for related party
transactions proposed to be entered into by the company, which are at arm's length, in
ordinary course of business and repetitive in nature.

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

2. Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee:

The Board of Directors of the Company has re-constituted the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on 23 May, 2025 and the said Committee consisted the following members during the

year:
Name of Director Directorship Role in Commitiee
Mr. CH 5. 5. Mallikarjunarao Independent Director Chairman
Mz, Rachana Rahul Parikh Independent Director Member
Mr. Jyotindra Mansulkhlal Mehta Director Member
Mr. H. K. Patil Director Member
Mr. Krishnakumar Subramanyam Independent Director Member
[upto 29% [anuary, 2025
Mr. Ajai Kumar Independent Director Member
(upto 17® March, 2025}
Dr. Radha Binod Barman Independent Director Member
(upto 17% March, 2025)

During the year under review, the Company had 3 (Three]) Nomination and Remuneration

Committee Meeting:
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) MEETING - 2024-25
Meeting |  Mr. | | Ms. Rachana R.
Meeting S = Mr. S Dr. Radha B. . e S ar:‘a

. Date & Jyotindra ; Mr. Ajai Kumar Parikh

No. : Krishnakumar® Barman
Time Mehta
&7 | 16/07/2024 S s v v N.A.




NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) MEETING - 2024-25

Meetin Mr. Ms. Rach R.
Meeting cetng 5 Mr. S Dr. Radha B. . 5 aza
Date & Iyvotindra : Mr. Ajai Kumar Parikh
No. 7 Krishnakumar® Barman
Time Mehta
&05:30 PM
i 27/09/2024
& 02:00 PM d v v | i ¥
. 04/03/2025 |
TH
@ & 04:45 PM Y N-A- L | ¥ o)

*: Appointed as a member of the committee effective from 17 July, 2024,
*: Ceased to a member of the committee effective from 29% January, 2025.
L: Leave of absence,

Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes:

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

(wiii)

(ix)
(x]

(xi)

The Committee shall consist of minimum of three directors with all directors of the
committee shall be non-executive directors; and at least fifty percent of the directors shall be
independent directors.

The Chairperson of the nomination and remuneration committee shall be an independent
director.

The guorum for a meeting of committee shall be either two members or one third of the
members of the committee, whichever iz greater, including at least one independent director
in attendance.

The nomination and remuneration committee shall meet at least once in a year.

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down in the NRC Policy.
Recommending to the Board, appointment, remuneration and removal of directors and
senior management.

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board and carrying
out evaluation of every director's performance,

Formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend fo the Board a policy. relating to the remuneration of the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

Devising a policy on Board diversity.

To do such act as specifically prescribed by Board and

Carry out such functions, and is empowered to act, in terms of Companies Act 2013, read with
riles framed there under, including any amendment or modification thereof.

3. Business Development Committee:

The Board of Directors of the Company had also voluntarily constituted a Business Development
Committee of the Board of Directors and its constitution is as under:

Name of Director Directorship Role in Committee
Mr. Jyotindra Mansukhlal Mehta Director Member
Mr. Hanumantgouda Krishnagouda Patil Director Member
Mr. Krishnakumar Subramanyam Independent Director | Member
(upto 292 January, 2025)




Name of Director Directorship Role in Committee

Mr. Ajai Kumar . Independent Director | Member
{upto 17% March, 2025)
Dr. Radha Binod Barman | Independent Director | Member

(upto 17® March, 2025)

The committee, being a non- statutory committee did not meet during the year under review.
4. Meeting of Independent Directors:

A meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 4% March, 2025 to review the performance of
Non - Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, to review the performance of Chairperson of
the Company, taking into account the views of directors and to assess the guality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the management of the company and the Board under
Para VII of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Details of employee remuneration as required under provisions of Section 197(12] of the Act read
with Rules 5{2) & 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}
Rules, 2014, forms part of this Report and will be provided upon request by a Member. Further,
having regard to the provisions of the second proviso to Section 136{1} of the Act and as advised, this
Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. Any
member interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary and the same
will be furnished on request.

ANALYSIS OF REMUNERATION:

The Company is not listed on any Recognized Stock Exchange; hence disclosure regarding the ratio of
the remuneration of each Director to the employes’s median remuneration and other details are not
applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

According to the provisions of section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not
required to constitute Corporate Social Responsibility Committee [(CSR Committee]) as it does not fall
under the purview of the said section and hence is not bound to formulate a C5R policy.

AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

The Company did not have any surplus fund lying in the unpaid or unclaimed dividend account for
the peried of seven years as per the provisions of section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 established
by the Central Government. Therefore, there was no fund required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

SIGN[FIEANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR

During the vear under review, there was no litigation which was significant and material impacting
the going concern status and company's operations in future.
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has granted registration to the company as non-deposit accepting
NBFC and with investment of funds in Government Securities, the Company has commenced the
NBEC activities and an intimation has been given to RBL

RI GEM POLICY:

The Board of Directors of the Company endeavors to review the risk at regular intervals in the Board
Meetings held during the financial year. The Board of Directors of the Company ensures the
meazurement and control of risk factors and advice on the same to the Company. As a matter of
precaution, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The particulars regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo pursuant fo section 134{3)(m] of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 are not applicable. The NIL statement is annexed as Annexure-A.
The Company has not earned any foreign currency income nor has expensed any foreign currency.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:
The Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants as Infternal Auditors of the Company to
conduct the Internal audit. The Company management is keeping control over the internal functions

of the Company. The internal financial matters are closely observed and monitored by the
management.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

As the Company is neither a Listed Company, nor falling under the criteria laid down under rule (7}
of the Companies (Meetings of Boards and its Powers) Rules, 2014, hence the provision of Vigil
Mechanism is not applicable to the Company during the financial year under review.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKFPLACE {PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace for the Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal Act, 2013. The Company did not receive any complain during the year 2024-25 under the
review.

APPOINTMENT OF DESIGNATED PERSON:

Pursuant to sub-rule {4] of rule 9 of the Companies [Management and Administration) Rule, 2014,
every Company shall be responsible for furnishing and extending co-operation for providing
information to the Registrar or any other authorised officer with respect to beneficial interest in
shares of the Company, in accordance to the same and sub-rule (5] of the aforementioned rule the
Company may designate a person a person to fulfil the obligation under this rule.

However, the Company is yet to formally designate someone through a duly convened Board meeting
hence in accordance to sub-rule (6] of rule 9 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rule, 2014, Mr. Vikas Tarekar the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company is
deemed to be the designated person.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Your Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118{10) of the
Companies Act. 2013 for FY 2024-25.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH

THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR;

During the Financial Year. no application was made and/or any proceeding has been initiated or
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; 2016, by any Financial and/or Operational
Creditors against your Company. As on the date of this report there were no details of application
made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Banlouptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2018)
during the year.

ACENOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its gratitude for the continued co-operation & assistance extended by
NAFCUB, NCDC, RBIL Ministry of Home Affairs, Ministry of Agriculture, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Urban Co-operative Banks, Industry experts and Members of the Company.

We would be failing in our duty if the active participation of all our Stakeholders is not appreciated.
We express our gratitude to all the stakeholders for their wholehearted co-operation & support for
us all the time. We on behalf of the Company assure the Stakeholders that the Company will make
every effort to meet their aspirations.

For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors

SD/-
Jvotindra Mehta
Date: 4% September 2025 Chairman
Place: Rajkot DIN: 00387212
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Information pursuant to section 134(3)(m]) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
[Accounts) Rules, 2014 forming part of Directors’ Report for the yvear ended 31= March, 2025.

A. Conservation of energy-
1. 5teps taken and impact on conservation of energy:
da) Energy Conservation measure like minimum idle machine time, putting off lights
when not needed, efc. arein place.
b) The adoption of energy conservation measures above has resulted in awareness
amongst the employees. It will have long term impact on saving of extra costs on
ENergy.

2. Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy.
No such step is taken by the company.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment;
No capital Investment is made in such equipment.

B. Technology absorption-
1. The efforts in brief towards technology, absorption: NIL
2, Benefits: NIL

3. Details of imported technology:
The company has not imported any technology since incorporation {182 April, 2020}.

4. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Qutgo-

During the year under review, the Company did not earn any foreign income and there was no

foreign outgo.
For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors
sSDhy/-
Jyotindra Mehta
Date: 4= September 2025 Chairman
Place: Rajkot DIN: 00387212
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Maonagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members

MNATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: Ue5990DL2020PLC363322

Regd. Off: B-14, A-BLOCK, 3RD FLOOR,

LOCAL SHOPPING COMPLEX, RING ROAD,
MNARAINA VIHAR, SOUTH WEST DELHI,

NEW DELHI -110028, DELHI, INDIA.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE
FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED [CIN: U65990DL2020PLC363322]
(hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the Fi al Ye o 31, 2025
according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the rules made there under;

i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956('SCRA") and the rules made there
under;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed there under;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

{v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act);

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Tradin
Regulations, 2015;

/1, Anison Complex, 3% Floor, SBI Lane, Nr. Stadium Circle, C. G. Road, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad-380 009 ®f : 079-26421414, 26421555, e-mail: csdoshiac@gmail com™ : 098250 64740 N
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NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
[CIN: UB5990DL2020PLC363322]

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations,
2018; and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018.

However, it has been found that there were no instances requiring compliance with the
provisions of the laws indicated at point no. (i}, (iv) and (v) mentioned hereinabove during
the period under review as the said regulations were not applicable to the company.

v) The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934 and rules, regulations, master directions and
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as applicable to Non Deposit taking
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFC) and which are specifically applicable to the
Company on test check basis and relying upon the representation made by the
Company and its officers for the system and mechanism framed by the Company
for compliances made thereunder.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange and The
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

However, it was noted that the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 were not applicable to the Company as securities of the Company are not
listed on any recognized stock exchange and the company has not entered into any Listing
Agreement with any of the Stock Exchange also as securities of the Company are not listed on
any recognized stock exchange. We have been informed that the company is complying with
the _oplicable clauses of secretarial standards; however, relevant documents were not
available for our verification.

We further report that, we have relied on the representations made by the Company and its
officers for systems and mechanisms formed by the Company for compliances under the laws
and regulations applicable to the Company as referred hereinabove and verification of
documents and records on test check basis. During the period under review, the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
mentioned hereinabove and there is an adequate compliance management system
purpose of laws applicable to the Company.

Tf/1, Anison Complex, 3 Floor, SBI Lane, Nr. Stadium Circle, C. G. Road, Navrangpura, ||
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NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
[CIN: U65990DL2020PLC363322]

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board that took place during the period under review as mentioned below
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act:

(A) Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh [DIN: 10063393] was appointed (Regularization) as Non-
Executive Independent Director of the Company for a period of one year from March27,
2024 to March 26, 2025 by passing Ordinary Resolution at the 4™Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on September 24,2024,

(B) the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on luly 17, 2024, accepted the
resignation of Mr. Atul Narayan Khirwadkar (PAN: AFRPK3041H) as CEQ (Chief Executive
Officer) and Whole time Key Managerial Personnel of the company with effect from the
close of the working hours on September 13, 2024.

(C) the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on July 17, 2024, approved the
appointment of Mr. Prabhat Kumar Chaturvedi (PAN: AGIPC2448)) as Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) and Whole time Key Managerial Personnel of the company with effect from
September 14, 2024.

(D) the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on July 17, 2024, accepted the
resignation of Ms. Franky Arora (PAN: BRRPA9377D) as CFO (Chief Financial Officer) and
whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company with effect from the close of the
working hours on August 07, 2024.

(E) the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on July 17, 2024, approved the
appointment of Ms. Hetal Tejas Faldu (PAN: ABHPS5280N) as CFO (Chief Financial Officer)
and whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company with effect from August 08,
2024,

(F) the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on February 24,2025 took note
of death and cessation of Mr. Krishnakumar Subramanyam [DIN: 01785323] an
independent Director of the company with effect from January 29,2025.

(G) Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh [DIN: 10063393] ceased to be an Independent Director of the
company with effect from March 26, 2025, on completion of her first term.

(H) the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on March 04, 2025, appointed
Mr. Seshabhadrasrinivasa Mallikarjunarao Chamarty (DIN:07667641) as Additional
Director (Non -Executive Independent Director) of the Company for a period of two
with effect from March 18, 2025.

/1, Anison Complex, 3% Floor, SBI Lane, Nr. Stadium Circle, C G. Rpad, Navrangpura, .
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() the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on March 04, 2025,
reappointed Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh [DIN: 10063393] as Additional Director (Non-
Executive Independent Women Director) of the Company for the second Term of three
years with effect from March 27,2025. [Note: All Form DIR 12 with respect to
appointment, regularization and retirement of Ms. Rachana Rahul Parikh [DIN:
10063393] has been filed by the company, however due to technical issues on MCA
portal, in master data, the Date of Appointment at current designation shown as March
27, 2024 (initial date of appointment) instead of March 27, 2025 as additional director
(actual date of appointment for Second Term)].

{J) the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on March 24, 2025, took note
of cessation of Mr. Radha Binod Barman [DIN: 02612871] and of Mr. Ajai Kumar
[DIN:02446976] as Independent Directors of the company with effect from March 17,
2025, due to completion of their Second term as Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent generally at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
However, we were given to understand that in urgent cases, the meetings of Board and
general meetings of members were convened at a shorter notice for which advance
notices were served in accordance with the gap between the notice and the meeting on
case-to-case basis.

All decisions at Board and Committee meetings have been carried out with requisite majority
of the members of the Board or Committees as the case may be, while the dissenting
Members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes, wherever required.

We further report that there are adeguate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with the applicable sector specific laws, rules, regulations and guidelines referred
hereinabove.

We further report that during the audit period of the Company, there were no specific events
/ actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. except the following:

(A) The Company has commenced Non-Banking Financial Activities (NBFC Activities) with
effect from May 24, 2024, as its financial assets consequent to making investment in
Government Securities Treasury bonds of more than 50% of its total assets and the
income from financial assets assured to be more than 50% of its total income.
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[CIN: U65990DL2020PLC363322]

(B) the Company had taken on lease the Corporate Office premises at 04, Ground Floor,
Windfall, Sahar Plaza, J B Nagar, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059,
Maharashtra, India effective from September 09, 2024.

(C) the Authorised Share Capital of the Company increased from Rs. 200,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Two Hundred Crore) divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) Equity Shares
of Face Value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs.1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees One
Thousand Crore) divided into 100,00,00,000 (One Hundred Crore) Equity Shares of
Face Value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) by passing of ordinary resolution at the 4" Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 24,2024.

(D) the company has obtained approval of members of the Company to issue, offer and
allot upto14,40,04,922 (Fourteen Crore Forty Lakhs Four Thousand Nine Hundred
Twenty-Two) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each for cash at par aggregating
to Rs. 144,00,49,220/- (Rupees One Hundred Forty Four Crore Forty Nine Thousand
Two Hundred Twenty Only) through Private Placement by Special Resolution passed
in Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company dated March 24,2025.

(E} the company has made Private Placement offer to issuel2,44,70,272 (Twelve Crore
Forty-Four Lakhs Seventy Thousand Two Hundred Seventy-Two) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- (Rupees Ten) each for cash at par aggregating to Rs. 124,47,02,720/- (Rupees One
Hundred Twenty-Four Crore Forty-Seven Lakhs Two Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty
Only) in terms of Board Resolution dated March 24,2025 and Shareholders Resolution
passed in Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated March 24,2025.

Place: Ahmedabad Signature  : rﬁ_ﬁ\»wj
Date: June 20, 2025 Name of practicing C 5: Nirali Patel, Partner
SPANJ &ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
ACS/FCS No. :F9092
CPNo ;10644
Peer Review Certi No.: 6467/2025

UDIN Number: FO09092G000639337
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure | and forms an integral
part of this report.
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Annexure - |

The Members,

NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U65990DL2020PLC363322

Regd. Off: B-14, A-BLOCK, 3RD FLOOR,

LOCAL SHOPPING COMPLEX, RING ROAD,
NARAINA VIHAR, SOUTH WEST DELHI,

NEW DELHI -110028, DELHI, INDIA.

Sir,

Sub: Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Place: Ahmedabad Signature T 1

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on a test basis tc ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we follow provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on a test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

g/

Name of practicing CS: Nirali Patel, Partner
SPANJ &ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
ACS/FCS No. :F9092
CPNo : 10644
Peer Review Certi No.: 6467/2025
UDIN Number: FO0S092G000639337
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members
National Urban Co-operative Finance and Development Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Urban Co-operative
Finance and Development Corporation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its "loss"
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibililies under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the '‘Code
of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements We have also complied with the
eligibility critenia and declarations mandated by the Reserve Bark of India (RBI) for
auditors of Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs).
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw aftention to Note; 27 (Notes to Cash flow statement) and reported in  Clause
No.3(xvii) of CARO ( the "Order”) to the financial statements, which describes the
Company's “cash loss" incurred during the financial year ended March 31, 2025,
amounting to ¥ 1,2243,282, as compared to a cash profit of 2 2323577 In the
immediately preceding financial year ended March 31, 2024. As explained to us, the
management has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis considering
their plans to deploy the fund in a productive activity to carry NBFC business and explore
avenues of eamings after RBI Approval, which, in our opinion, are appropriate. Our
opinion is not medified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Cur audit procedures included:

(1) Obtaining and reviewing the Company's detailed asset register and income
statements to verify the composition of total assets and gross income.

(2) Specifically analysing and valuing the nature of financial assets, including treasury
bonds, and canfirming they exceed 50% of total assets.

(3) Verifying the source and amount of income from these financial assets {e.qg., interest
from Wreasury bonds) and confirming it exceeds 50% of gross income.

(4) Reviewing the Company's Cerlificate of Registration (CoR) from the RBI and
assessing its continued eligibility as an NBFC based an the 50:50 test.

(5) Discussing with management their strategic plans regarding the commencement of
the lending business and its potential impact on the 50:50 criteria in future periods.

Our audit procedures included:

(1) Analysing the Company's cash flow projections and underlying assumptions.

(2) Discussing with management their plans to address the cash loss, including strategies
for managing operating expenses, and securing additicnal capital infusion to meet
Reserve Bank of India prescribed condition to start business activilies,
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(3) Reviewing post-balance sheet events for any indicators impacting the going concern
assumption. Found the management opinicn in order that the Company will continue
as a going concern.

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's management and Boeard of Direclors are responsible for the other
information, which comprises the Management Discussicn and Analysis, Directors'
Report, and other reports included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and the auditor's report thereon. Gur cpinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement
of this information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and far view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
financial controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Board of Directors is also responsible for oversesing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an audilor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant ta the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures ara inadequate,
to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and conlent of the financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represeni the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters.
the planned scope and timing of the audit and sigrificant audil findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and fo
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matler should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure “A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order ('the Order') to the
extent applicable,

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(B) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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(c) The Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of

Cash Flows dealt with by this Reporl are in agreement with the books of
account,

(d) Im our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. It is important to note that Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) are not applicable fo the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025, as its net worth is less than 500 crores,
and it is a non-listed, non-systemically important, non-deposit taking NBFC,
The applicability thresholds for Ind AS for NBFCs generally commence at a
net worth of 250 crore or 500 crore, depending on listing status and the
phase of adoption. Therefore, the Company correctly applies the Accounting
Standards (AS) under Indian GAAP (Generally Accepled Accounting
Principles).

(e} As informed by the Management No director is disqualified as on March 31,

2023, from being appoinled as a director in terms ot Section 164(2) of the Act,

(1) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

a)

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrals,
our separate Report in “Annexure B "(Clause 3(xiv) of the Order) is
provided. Our Report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting; and

The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year in contravention of qualified amount u/s 197 read with schedule
under Companies Act 2013,

h) With respect to the olher mallers to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations giver:

(I) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position.

(i} The Company did not have any long-lerm contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
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(iii} There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) A, The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge

B.

and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds} by the company to or in any other persan(sjor entity (ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in wnting or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Parly (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(vi) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vii} The Company has used accounting scftware for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) of all
transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been
tampered with and the records have been preserved by the Company in
accordance with the law far record retention.
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As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Acl, 2013, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order is
given in Annexure A,

For, P.K. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 106484W

(Pradip Modi)
Proprietor
Membership No.:43672

UDIN: 25043672BMNSFB5411

Place: Osaka, Japan
Date: 20 June, 2025
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under’ Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement’s section] of our Report of even date to the Members of National
Urban Co-operative Finance and Development Corporation Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by National Urban
Co-Operative Finance and Development Corporation Limited ("the Company”) and the
bocks of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

3(i) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets

(@ (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full parliculars of
intangible assets.

(o} The PFroperty, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year, No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification

{cy There i= no immovable registered in the name of company

(d) The Company has nat revalued its Property, Plant and Eguipment (including right
of use assets) or intangible assets or bath during the year. Hence, this clause of
the Order is nol applicable Lo the Company

(e} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Hence, this clause of the Order is
not applicable to the Company,

3(ii) Inventory and Working Capital
This company is NBFC and therefore clause (a) and (b) are not applicable.

3(iii) Investments, Guarantees, Security, Loans, or Advances

(a) There is no loan and advances given to other parties. Hence this clause is not
applicable

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the
investments made are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. As the lending
business is yet to commence, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and
advances in the nalure of loans are not applicable.
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(¢} In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, this of the Order is not
applicable to the Company as the lending business is yet to commence.

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, this clause of the Order
is not applicable to the Company as the lending business is yet lo commence.

(e) This clause of the Order is nol applicable to the Company as the lending business
is yet to commerice,

(f} The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

3(iv) Compliance with Sections 185 and 186 of Companies Act. 2013
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013, with respect to investments made.

3(v) Deposits accepted

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company, being a non-deposit accepting NBFC, has not accepted any deposits or
deemed deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,
2013, or the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, or directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India. Furthermore, the Board of Directors has passed a
resolution for non-acceptance of any public deposits as required by RBI Master
Direclions.

3(vi) Maintenance of costing records
The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the business
activities carried on by the Company. Accordingly, this Clause of the CARO 2020 is
not apolicable.

3(vii) Deposit of statutory liabilities

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, Income-tax, and other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. No arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the
financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the dale they
become payable were noticed.

(b) There are no disputed statutory dues that have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.
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3{viii) Undisclosed income

No transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered ar
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1981 (43 of 1961).

3(ix) Default in repayment of borrowings

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or cther borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender (bank, financial institution,
Government, or debenture holders),

(k) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has not raised any term loans during the year. Hence, this clause
3(Ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not utilized funds raised on a short-term basis for long-term
purposes.

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies,

3(x) Funds raised and utilisation

(a) The Company has not raised money by way of preferential/private placement
during the year.

(b) The Company has not made a preferential allotment of equity shares during the
year. Therefore, the provisions of this clause 3(x){a) &(b) not applicable.

3(xi) Fraud and whistle-blower complaints

(a) No fraud by the Company ar any fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b} No report under sub-seclion (12) of Seclion 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during
the year.

(c) No whistie-blower complaints were received by the Company during the year.

3(xii) Compliance by a Nidhi Company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of this clause 3(xii)
of the CARQ 2020 are not applicable.
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3(xiii) Compliance on transactions with related parties

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company
for the year under review as there is no Related Party Transactions made during
the period; However, the details of related parties and Nature of Relationship have
been disclosed in the financial statements at Note No-25 as required by the
applicable Accounling Standards,

3 (xiv) Internal audit system

(a) The Campany has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business,

(b) We have perused the reports of the Intemal Auditors for the year under audit
3(xv) Non-cash transactions

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them during the year, Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable.

3(xvi) Registration under Section 45-1A of RBI Act, 1934

(a) The Company has received Cerlificate of Registration (COR) u/s 451A (5) of
Reserve Bank of India Act1934 on February 82024 and the Company
commenced principal business activities of NBFC on May 24 2024 by complying
criteria of twin conditions i.e. Company's financial assets more than 50% its total
assets and financial income more than 50% of its total income to remain eligible
to hold the COR. As verified from the Company's records, these twin conditions
are salisfied by the Company.

by The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regutations made by the Reserve Bank of India and the Group does not have any
CIC. Hence, Clauses 3(xvi)(c) &(d) of the Order is nct applicable to the Company.

3(xvii) Cash losses

The Company has incurred a cash logs of 31,22 43 282 during the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, as compared to a cash profit of ¥ 23,29,577 in the
immediately preceding financial year.
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3(xviii) Resignation of statutory auditors
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
3(xix) Material uncertainty

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheel as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date.

3(xx) Transfer to fund specified under Schedule VIl of Companies Act, 2013

(a) The Company |s not required to transfer any unspent amount to a Special
Account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of ather than ongoing projects.

(b} (b) The Company is not required to transfer any unspent amount o the Special
Account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of ongoing projects.

Hence, this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

3(xxi) Qualifications/Adverse Remarks of Other Auditors (Group Companies)

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.
Hence, the provisions of this clause of the Order is not applicable io the Company.

For, P.K. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 106484W

{Pradip Modi)

Proprietor

Membership No.:43672

UDIN: 25043672BMNSFB5411

Place: Osaka, Japan
Date: 20 June, 2025
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Annexure “B" to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements’ section of our report of even data to the Members of National Urban
Co-Operative Finance and Development Corporation Limited

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of
subsection 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Urban
Co-Operative Finance and Development Corporation Limited ("the Company") as at
March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The beard of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential compaonents of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, the safeguarding cof its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over the
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards
and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reparting were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intermal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
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and operating effectivenass of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriale to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statemenis for external purposes in accordance with gensrally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those paolicies and
procedures that

(i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

(i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and

(i) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limltations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degres
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations are given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over
financial reporling and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, P.K. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106484W

—priwd

(Pradip Modi)
Proprietor
Membership No.:43672

UDIN:25043672BMNSFB5411

Place: Osaka, Japan
Date: 20 June, 2025



NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:UB5S30DL2020PLCIEIZZ2
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 315T MARCH 2025

Amount in Rs, Lakh

PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31st Asat 31st
March 2025 | March 2024
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1l Shareholder's Funds
[} Share Capital 2 11,755.06 11,795.06 |
(b} Reserves and Surpluc i {164.53) [21.42)
{£) Money Keceved Agzinst Shares Warrants .
Total shareholders’ funds 11,630.44 11,773.64
{2 ) share Application Money Pending for Allotmant 1,007.34 -
(3] Non-Current Liahilities
{a] long Term Borrowangs = -
{0} Defarred Tax Liabilities [Met) .
{e} Othisi: Lisng Term Liabilities - .
{d) Other Long term Provisions a4-A .05 -
Total Mon-current Liahilities B.05
j{8) Current Liatilities
{a) Short-Term Borrowings 7
{b] Trace Pavables - -
{cy Other Current Liabilities 5 148,58 12559
[d] Short Term Provisions 4p 0.65
Total Current Liabilities 149,23 125.58
Total Equity and Uabilities
TOTAL 13,685.07 11,890,773
1. ASSETS
1] Non-Current Assets
{a] Property, Plant and Eguipment and | ntangible Aszets
(i} Property, Plant and Equipment & 39.67 057
[il} Intengible Assets 7 316 -

[ici] Capital Workin Progress ¥ +
[iw] intangibie Assets under Development -

(b} Mon - Current fnvestrrants -

(] Deferrad Tax Assets | Net) 0 1M £15

{dl} Lrwsg berm Loans and Advances -

[E} Othe Nom-Current Assets 8 244,33 127828

Total Nop-Current Assets 287.9% 1.276.37
(2} Current Ascets

{a} Current Irvestrrents g F168,53 -

(b} Inventories > 5
{c} Trade Recewables

I JCazh ard Cash equivelents 10 568753 0,578 55
{8} Short-Term Loans and Advances 11 5.88 [F4 |
{fi Other Current Assets 12 544.16 44,711
Total Current Assets 13,407.11 10,622, 85
TOTAL 15,695,07 11,499,23

Motas b Accoumnts 1031

The accompanying Botes foem an integral part of the financisl statsments

As per Our Report of even date

Far, P.K. MOD) & £0. For ond an behalf of the Baord of Directors of
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Netional Lirben Co-Operothve Finance ond Development Corporation Lid.,

Membership No.: 643672 e

Firm Reg. No.: 1064800 = Prabhot r Chotwrved]
UDiN: 2504367 200MNSFBS411 Chief Execulive Cificer
Plage: Oseka Jopan Ploce: Mumwbai

Derbec 20 June, 2025 Date:20 Jure, 2025




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.
CIN:U65920DL2020PLC363322
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2025

Amopunt in Rs. Lakh

PARTICULARS Note No. 2024-25 2023-24

Finance Income 13 423.592 -
Other Income 14 314.54 18357
Total Income 738.46 183.57
EXPENSES

Employee Benefit Expenses 15 368.47 44.94

Financial Costs 7

Depreciation & Amoartisation Expense 16 262 0.80

Other Expenses 17 501.12 115.33
Total Expenses 878.21 161.07
Profit before exceptional and extracrdinary items and tax [139.75] 22.50
Exceptional ltems =
Profit befare extraordinary items and tax (V-Vi) (139.75] 22.50
Extracrdinary Mems
Profit before tax (VII-VIII) (239.75)] 22.50
TAX EXPENSES

{a) Current Tax

(b)(Deferred Tax Asset)/Liability 1.45 (5.15)

ic] Tax adjustment of earlier years -

Profit/ |Loss) for the year (143.20) 27.64

Earning per equity share :

(1) Basic {0.12) =

(2} Diluted {0.12) -
MNotes to Accounts 1to3l

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per Our Report of even date
For, P.K. MODI & €0. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS National Urban Co-Operative Finarce ond Development Carparation Ltd
w' JGo e

P.K. MODI Jyotil Wansukhlal Mehta Hetal Faldu
PROPRIETOR Chairman Chief Financiol Officer
Membership No.: 043672 {DIN: 0387212
Firm Reg. No.: 106484 ﬁﬁ’
UDIN: 2504367 2BMNSFB5411 /-:""’," -

Prabhot Kumar Choturved] Nyra Hinduja

Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
ACS:62852

Place: Osaka Japan Place: Mumbai
Dote: 20 June, 2025 Date: 20 June, 2025




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:US5930DL2020PLC363322

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR

THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2025

Amount in

Rs. Lakh

PARTICULARS

2024-25 2023-24

A.|Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Net Profit before Tax and Extraordinany ltems adjustment
Depreciation

Provisions

Cperating Profit before working capital chamges:

Changes in Working Capital

Adjustments for (increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade Receivables

Long Term Loans and Advances

Short Term Loans and Advances

Other Current Assets

Cther Non - Current Assets

Adjustments for increase/ (Decrease) in Operating Liabilites
Other Current Liabilities

Trade Payables

Long term Provisions

Shorl term provisions

Cash Generated fram/ [used in | Operations
Direct Tax paid including Deferred Tox

2250
.80

(139.75)
8.62

{131.13)

{5.68]
(500.08)
1,029.37

(0.14)
(27.83)
{537.09)

9.09
241

2283

B80S
0.65

23.30

55533
424,20

3.45

(55356)
(530.28)
(5.15)

A_Net cash generated from/ (used in) Operating Activities

420.75

{525.12)

B.|Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Capital Expendilure of Fixed Assels
Froceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Investment in Fixed Deposit Government Bonds

{49.58)

(7,169.53)

(1.77)

=

i Net Cash Flow Generated from/ {used in) Investing Activities

(7,219.11)

{1.77)

C. |cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue proceeds from Equity Shares
Long Term Borrowing-Unsecured Loan

1,207.34

1048000

€ Net Cash Flow Generated from/ [used in | Financing Activities

1,507.34

10,480.00

Met Increazef{Decrease] in Cash and Cazh Cquivalent [A+B+C]
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year

(4.891.03)
10,578 55
5 687.53

®.903.11
615.43
1057858

Notes to Accounts 131

The accompanying Motes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached herewith

For, P K Modi & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

—_—

P MoDf

PROPRIETOR
Membership No.: 043672
Firm Reg. No.: 106484W
UDIN: 250436728MNSFBSS11

Bloce: Osaka Japan
Date: 20 June, 2025

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
National Urban Co-Operative Finonce and Development Corporation Lid

e

Monsukhial Mehta
Chalrmean

Prabhat Kumar Choturved|
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 lune, 2025

in.':: pd i~

Hetal Faldu
Chief Fingncial Officer
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NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.
CIN:U65990DL2020PLC 363322
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3157 MARCH 2025

Note-1:
Motes to Financial Statements

These notes provide detailed information and explanations that are an integral part of the
financial statements, offering a comprehensive understanding of the Company's financial
position, performance and cash flows.

General Information about the Company

National Urban Cooperative and Finance Development Corporation Company ("the Company”)
is a Mon-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) incorporated in India on. Its registered office Is
located at B-14, A - Block, 3rd Floor, Local Shopping Complex, Ring Road, Naraina Vihar, New
Delhi — 110 028 and corporate office at Office: 04, Ground Foor, Windfall, Sahar Plaza, 1 &
Nagar, Andher| Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai- 400 059. The Company is primarily engaged
in financial and non-financial activities to support, assist and guide urban cooperative banks. It
is an umbrella organisation for Urban Cooperative Banks and light house for Cooperative
Banking sector. While the Company has obtained its Certificate of Registration as an NBFC, its
lending business is yet to commence, The financial statements cover the period for the year
ended March 31, 2025,

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis,
following the accrual system of accounting, and under the historical cost convention. The
preparation of these financial statements follows the Companies Act, 2013, and the Accounting
Standards (AS) notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

It is explicitly stated that Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS5) are not applicable to the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, This non-applicability is due to the
Company's net worth being less than 250 crores, and its classification as a non-listed, non-
systemically important, non-deposit taking NBFC, The thresholds for mandatory Ind AS
applicability for NBFCs typically apply to those with a net worth of

3250 crore or more (for unlisted NBFCs) and to listed NBFCs or those in the process of listing.
The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the Indian Rupee {INR).

1.2 Revenue Recognition

Interest income from investments (primarily treasury bonds) and fixed deposit with Banks is
recognized on a time proportion basis, taking into account the amount outstandi




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.
CiN:UEE84001L2020PLEC3E3422
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

applicable rates. As a matter of prudence, interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
not recognized unless it is actually realized. Dividend income from shares of corporate bodies
and units of mutual funds Is recognized on an accrual basis when the right to receive payment is
sstablished. Dther operating revenues, such as processing fees (if any), are recognized when the
service is rendered. No significant interest income from lending activities has been recopnized
as the lending business is yel to commence.

1.3 Property, Plant and Equipment [PPE) and Intangible Assets

The Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
lasses, if any. Cost includes the purchase price, directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use, and the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Intangible asseis are
recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributahle to the
assot will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method, calculated on the basis of estimated
useful life of the assets using the indicative useful life as prescribed under part C of schedule 1l
to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has used the following useful life to provide
depreciation on fixed assets:

Types of Property, Plant and Equipment Useful life
"Office Equipments - 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures _ ll:_l.".l'E'afs
Computer equipment 3 years
Software N 3 years

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets
are sold or disposed. 5% of cost of acquisition of the assets has been taken as the residual value
which s line with the provisions of Act.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term i1.e.3 years Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

1.4 Investments

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year
from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classified as long-term investments.




MNATIONAL URBAN CO-DPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.
CIN:UG5950DL2020PLC363322
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost i.e. Purchase price. Long-term
investments are carried out at cost. Provision for diminution In value is made to recognize a
decline, other than temparary, in the value of such investments. Current investments are
however carried out in financial statements at the lower of cost or fair value determined on an
individual investment basis.

On disposal of investments, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal
praceeds is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.5 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligaticn.
Contingent fiabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company, or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannol be measured with sufficient reliability.

1.6 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equities shares outstanding during the period. To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net
profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

1.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

1.8 Taxation

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for a period.
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LI1D.
CIN:UB5890DL2020PLE363322
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

1.9 Retirement and other employee benefits

Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS) 15, Employee Benefits.

The company operates a defined benefit plan for its employees, viz, gratuity liability. The costs
of providing benefits under these plans are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at
each year-end. A separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan using the projected
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses for both defined benefit plans are recognised in
full in the pariod in which they occur in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Aceumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as a
short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as
the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.

1.10. Preliminary Expenses:

The Company follows the method of writing off Preliminary Expenses in equal amount over a
period of 5 years.

1.11  Prior Period Expense:

Prior Period Expenses for FY 2024-2025 and FY 2023-2024 represent G5T Reversal expenses and
Professional Fees expenses respectively, which are related to the period prior to respective
tinancial years.
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NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:UB5990DL2020PLC363322

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

Note : 3 Reserves & Surplus

Amount in Rs. Lakh

< No PARTICULARS As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024
1 {Profit & Loss Account :
Opening balance {21.42) (49.06)
Add ; Profit /{Loss) for the period {143.20) 27.64
Closing Balance (164.62) (21.42)
Totalln % (164.62) (21.42)




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:U65990DL2020PLC363322

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025

Noite - 4 : Provisions

Amount in Rs. Lakh

st No PARTICULARS As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
2025 2024
Provision for Employee Benefits -
4-4 Long Term Provisians
Gratulty 108 -
Leave Encashment 4,97 -
Long Term Provisions A 8.05 =
4-B Shart Term Provisions
Garatuity 0.1 -
Leave Encashment 0.64 =
Short Term Provisions B 0.65 -
Note - 5 : Other Current Liobilities Amount in Rs. Lakh
As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
PARTICULARS
il 2025 2024
1 Duties & Taxes Payable 16.24 3.28
2 Payable to NAFCUIR 113.05 113.09
3 Other payables 11.05 681
4 Sundry Creditors
Due to Micro, S5mall and Medium Enterprise® 393 -
Dthers /.27 2.41
{*including the interest payable for late payment Rs. Nil)
Totalin % 148.58 125.59
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NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:UE5920DL2020PLC363322

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

Note - 8 Other Non - Current Assets

Amount in Rs. Lakh

3ist AL h
<t No PARTICULARS As ot March at 315t Marc
2025 2024
1 Security Deposit 2573 073
2 Preliminary Expense 212.60 15%.53
3 |Fixcd Depasits Having Maturity Of Mare Than 12 Months - 1,110.00
Total in X 234.33 1,270.26

Note : 9 Current Investments

Amount In R=. Lakh

As at 31st March As at 31st March
Sr No PARTICULARS
= 2015 024
1 Investments in Treasury Bills 7.1649.53 -
{Non-Trade, At cost) {Market value Rs. 7,189.53 |akh}
Total In % 7,169.53 -
Note : 10 Cash & Cash Equivalent Amount in Rs. Lakh
1=t Ma at
& No PARTICULARS As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024
1 Cash in Hand - -
2 Bank Balance 2.077.53 10,578.55
3 Fixed Deposiis:
with maturity less than 3 months 2,500.00 -
with maturity mare than 3 months but less than 12 manths 1,110000 -
Total In % 5,687.53 10,578.55

MNote : 11 Short Terms Loans and Advances

Amount in Ks, Lakh

As at 31st March A= at 31st March
SrNo PARTICULARS 025 2004
1 Leans & Advances to Others 5.21 021
[ F: Other Receivables 0.&8 B
Total In % 5.89 0.21 |
Note : 12 Other Current Assets Amount In Rs. Lakh
As at 31st March As at 31st March
5rNo PARTICULARS 2025 2024
1 Due Receivable From Government Authoritles 92,28 A7.66
P Interest Accrued but not due on Fixed Deposits 176.15 644
3 Income acorued but rot dus on Treasury Bills 269.63 B
4 Prepaid Expenses 5,10 -
Total ln ¥ 544.16 44.10




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:UG5990DL2020PLCIE2322

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3157 MARCH 2025

Mote - 13 : Finance Income

Amaunt Rs. In Lakh

5 Na PARTICULARS 202425 2023-24 Sl
1 imterest income from Treasury Bills 423.92 -
Total 423,92 =
Mote - 14 : Other Income Amount Bs, In Lakh
[ srno PARTICULARS 202425 2023-24
1 interest on Fied Deposit 308.28 183.45
2 Tender Fees 6.10 B
3 Inenme from Services 0,15 .
4 fnterest an income Tax Refund - .12
g Miscellaneous Income 001 -
Tolal 314.54 183.57
Note - 15 : Employee Benefit Expenses Amount Rs. In Lakh
¢ Mo PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
1 Salarkes and Wages 359,77 44,94
i Gratuity 31.09 -
] Leawe Epcashment 5.61
Total 36847 44,94
Nate - 16 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense Amaount Rs. In Lakh
Sr o PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24

1 Deprociation of Tangible Assets .25 0.00
i Amaortisation of Intangible Asset= 037 -
Taoral B.62 0.00




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

Note - 17 : Other Expenses Amt. Rs. In Lakh
2024-25 2023-24
SriNo PARTICULARS Amount () Aot (9
1 |Advertisement Charges 12.84 -
2 |Bank Charges 0.58 -
3 |Brokerage B 4.74 -
4 |BST Expense 2.29 -
5 | Traveling Conveyance and meeting expensas 20,04 1503
6 |Legal & Professional Charges 26673 23.16
7 |Printing & Stationary 32 1.05
2 |Renl 24.97 -
9 |Directors Sitting fees Tl 10.60
10 [Office Expense 5.30 0.33
11 [Interest on Taxes 0.81 0.14
12 |Ststulory fees and Duties 0.59 .68
13 |preliminary expenses wioff B4 62 39 88
14 |Other Expenses 2.34 1,34
15 |Umbralla | aunch Evenl Expernses - 12.08 |
165 |Prior pencd expanses 9.66 10.18
17 |Audit Feses .50 .75
18 |Technology expenses 2.48 0.20
Total S01.12 115.33
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WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED J1ST MARTH, 2025
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NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:Us5920DL2020PLC363322

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025

Note - 19 ; Payment to Auditors Amt in Rs, Lak
Particulars o
Amaunt (%) Amount (%)
Far Audit Fees 2,50 0.75 |

MNote - 20: Deferred Taxes

The break up of deferred tax liability and (deferred Lax asset) for the year ended 21st March 2024 |5 as under

Farticulars ik Sihiaag
Amount (3) Amount (T}
{A] Deferred Tax Asset on:
Provisions for employves Benelits 2.19
Preliminary expenses 518
Sub Total 2.19 5.18
(B] Deferred Tax lisbility on :
Fixed Assets 0.49 0.04
Sub Total 0.49 0.04
IEIE! A+B 1.70 5.15
Note - 21 : Expenditure in Foreign Currency Amount Rs.
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Amount (%) Amount (%)
Wi - =
MNote - 22 : Earning in Foreign Exchange Amount Rs.
Particulars ] 2023-35 Ale324
Amount {%]
wil | =

Mote -23 :

Mote -24 : Contingent Liabilitles : Nil

Note - 25 : Related Party Disclosures (As identified by the Management)
Related Parties and Nature of Relationship

In the Opinion of the Company the Current Asssts, | nan and Advances have the value at which they are started in the
Balance sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business, The provisicn for depreciation and for all known lizhilities is
adequate and not in excess of the amount reasenably necessary.

. . Nature of 2024-25
Directors of the Company Designation Py (Amount) 2023-24 I.ﬂmauntlﬂ
1. Hanumantgouda Patil Director Sitting Fees 0.20 160
2. Krishnakumar Subramanyam Director Sitting Fees 1.40 3.00
3. Ajai Kumar Director Sitting Fees 220 2.00
4. Radha Binod Barman Director Sitting Fees 1.60 3.00
5 Rachana Rahul Parikh Director Sitting Fees 1.80 =
6. Mallikarjun Rao Director Sitting Fees 0.20 -
Name Relatlons MNature of 2024-35  |2023-24 (Amount)
Transaction | (Amount)
Loans Taken -
Balance
NAFCUR Assaciates Outstanding




NATIONAL URBAN CO-OPERATIVE FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

CIN:UB5920DL2020PLC363322

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

MNote 26: Segment Reporting

In accordance with the Accounting Standards (A5 17), the Company operates predominantly in one business segment,
i.e,, financial services {primarily investment activities), and primarily within India, Therefore, segment reporting 25 per
AS 17 is not applicable.

Mota 27: MNote to Cashflow Statement

The Company incurred @ cash |oss of T 122.43 Lakh during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, The business
activities are yet to start and hence, there Is excess of expenditure over interest income as against cash profit of T 23.30
lakh in the previous year ended March 31, 2024, which was primarily driven minimal overheads and staff since
company was at preparatory stage. The management is actively working on intraducing products and services to its
member banks and to generate aperational revenue.

Mote 28: Asset Classification and Provisioning

The Campany has not yet started its lending activity <o the classification of advances as per prudential norms inte
Standard, sub-standard, Doubtful and loss Assets and comesponding provisioning nerms are not applicable. The
Company’s financials sssets currently comprise of investment in Treasury Biliz and fixed deposits with Banks. The
Company makes provision for any permanent diminution in the value of investments. As on March 31, 2025, the
investrments were reafisable at the book value and hence no provision was required for the same

Mote 29: Investment Concentration

The Company maintains an internal Boarc-approved policy for investments in Treasury Bills and Bank Deposits and the
investments during the year were in compliance with the said policy. The Company has not yet started the lending
activities and hence 1he credit concentration rorms are not applicable. The Company does not have any exposure to
real estate sector.

Note 30 Regulatory Disclosures
i. Certificate of Registration - The Company is a Non Barking Finance Company and holds Certificate of Registration no.
N -14.03609 issued on Eth February, 2024 by the Reserve Bank of India,

ii. 50:50 Criteria Confirmation - The Company confirms that it meets the '50:50 criteria’ as defined by the Reserve Bank
of India for classification 25 a Nan-Banking Financial Company. As at March 31, 2025, its financial assets (primarily
investments in treasury bonds}) constitute mare than 50% of its total assats, and income from these financial assats
[investment Income) constitutes more than 50% of its gross income which confirms its primary business as 2 financial
Institution

iii. Penalties - No penalties were imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank of India or any other regulatory
authorities during the finantial year 2nded March 31, 2025

Note 31 Prior year comparatives : Previous year's amounts have been regrouped) reclascified wharever necessary to
conform to the current year's presentation.

Far, P.K. MODI & CD. For ond on behalf of the Board of Directars of
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS National Urban Co-Operative Finonce and Development Corporation Lid
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